

Town of Swampscott Select Board Regular Session Minutes March 1, 2023 – 6:00 P.M. Swampscott High School, 200 Essex St. Room B129

Received by Town Clerk July 24, 2023, 4:42pm

SELECT BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: NEAL DUFFY, MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, DAVID GRISHMAN, KATIE PHELAN, PETER SPELLIOS

MEMBERS ABSENT: NONE

FINANCE COMMITTEE PRESENT: ERIC HARTMANN, NAOMI DREEBEN, JOAN HILARIO, ERIC SCHNEIER

FINANCE COMMITTEE ABSENT: MATHEW KIRSCHNER, SURAJ KRISHNAMURTHI, CINDER MCNERNEY, SUNIT SHAH

OTHER TOWN OFFICIALS PRESENT: SEAN FITZGERALD, TOWN ADMINISTRATOR, AMY SARRO, DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE, PATRICK LUDDY, TOWN ACCOUNTANT, ANGELICA NOBLE, SWAMPSCOTT POLICE DEPT./LIQUOR LICENSING BOARD

OTHER: PATRICK BURKE, COMMANDER, VFW, DAVID EMERTON, TREASURER, VFW, MALCOLM MALOON AND NELSON LEONE, VFW

A. **PUBLIC COMMENTS**: Ms. Heidi Whear, Director of Aging Services, Swampscott Senior Center, displayed a quilt that the High School room of color has been working on with the Senior Center. She introduced Temi Bailey, METCO academic coordinator and JV coach who added that the girls group and other HS students also assisted in the quilt. A student reached out to him to do a demonstrational and moving piece of art that represents students and seniors in Town. Mr. Bailey and Ms. Whear hope this quilt will be displayed throughout the Town.

AMY O'CONNOR, PRECINCT 6, SCHOOL COMMITTEE MEMBER: DISCUSSED DISPARAGING COMMENTS MADE AT THE LAST SELECT BOARD MEETING REGARDING THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE'S BUDGET. SHE IS ADVOCATING THAT THE BOARD GIVES THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE THE FUNDING THEY HAVE ASKED FOR SO THERE ARE NO CUTS. MR. DUFFY: THE BOARD WILL BE DISCUSSING THESE COMMENTS DURING THE 7:00 PUBLIC HEARING WITH THE FINANCE COMMITTEE.

- **B. NEW AND OLD BUSINESS** (Possible action/votes of the board)
 - 1. Public Hearing for transfer of Liquor License:

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING AT 6:07 P.M.: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

Andrew Ingemi, is applying as Dockside Pub to transfer the Liquor License from ZestFriendz. Mr. Ingemi, a resident of Swampscott is in partnership with his brother Alex Ingemi, in the Village Tavern in Salem. They had a good repour with ZestFriendz, knew the town doesn't have a pub and thought a seafood pub with a to-go window would be a good fit in that location. They are hoping to open before June $\mathbf{1}^{\text{st}}$ and will be open $\mathbf{1}:30$ AM - $\mathbf{1}:00$ PM. They applied to be open at 7AM in case they decide to offer breakfast.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING AT 6:11 P.M.: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

COMMENTS: MOIRA FARRELL, 16 BLANEY CIRCLE, IS AN ABUTTER OF THE RESTAURANT, AND QUESTIONED THE HOURS OF OPERATION, STATING THAT WHEN THE BUILDING FIRST OPENED AS A RESTAURANT, IT WAS SUPPOSED TO BE 4:00 -10:00 PM. SHE HEARS NOISE FROM THE RESTAURANT, OVENS GOING, CHATTER IN PARKING LOT, DELIVERIES, ETC. AND FEELS THAT BEING OPEN UNTIL 1:00 AM WILL DIRECTLY IMPACT HER SLEEP AND WILL HAVE A NEGATIVE IMPACT.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY PETER SPELLIOS, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO REOPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING AT 6:20 P.M. SO THAT MS. FARRELL'S COMMENTS WILL BE INCLUDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORD: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

MR. SPELLIOS TO MR. INGEMI: BARS ARE NOT ALLOWED IN SWAMPSCOTT SO THEY HAVE TO SERVE FOOD WHEN THEY ARE OPEN. HE ALSO ASKED IF THEY UNDERSTAND THE IMPACT ON NEIGHBORS? MR. INGEMI HAS BEEN A RESIDENT FOR 5 YEARS AND HAS A YOUNG SON IN SCHOOL. HE UNDERSTANDS MS. FARRELL'S CONCERNS, ESPECIALLY WHERE SHE MENTIONED THE VILLAGE TAVERN IN SALEM BUT THE TAVERN IS A 14,000 SQUARE FOOT FACILITY THAT FITS 400 PEOPLE. THERE HAVE ONLY BEEN 5 INCIDENTS SINCE THEY OPENED WHICH THEY LEARNED FROM & CORRECTED SO IT DOESN'T HAPPEN AGAIN. MS. NOBLE STATED THAT MISSION, HAWTHORNE, ZEST, & THE YACHT CLUB ARE THE ONLY ESTABLISHMENTS ALLOWED TO STAY OPEN UNTIL 1:00 AM.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC HEARING AT 6:25 P.M.: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY KATIE PHELAN, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO APPROVE THE TRANSFER OF LICENSE FROM ZESTFRIENDZ LLC TO DOCKSIDE PUB INC.: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

Ms. Fletcher's only reservation is her concern for the neighbors but anticipates they'll have great success. Mr. Ingemi and his brother will work with Ms. Farrell.

2. APPOINTMENTS: Ms. CHERYL MOSCHELLA IS HERE TO BE APPOINTED AS THE PART-TIME ASSESSOR. SHE COMES TO TOWN WITH A LOT OF EXPERIENCE, INCLUDING AS A REAL ESTATE APPRAISER AND READING BOARD OF ASSESSORS MEMBER. TA FITZGERALD RECOMMENDS THAT THE BOARD APPOINT MS MOSCHELLA AS THE TOWN'S ASSESSOR.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO APPROVE TA FITZGERALD'S RECOMMENDATION AND APPOINT CHERYL MOSCHELLA AS THE DIRECTOR OF ASSESSING: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

3. AFFORDABLE HOUSING OPPORTUNITIES: MR. GRISHMAN — THE TOWN HAS BEEN REACTIVE RATHER THAN PROACTIVE AND HASN'T DONE MUCH TO ADDRESS AFFORDABLE HOUSING OTHER THAN THE MACHON. NOR HAVE WE DONE MUCH TO SUPPORT VETERANS. HE IS HOPING WE CAN START TO RECTIFY THESE SITUATIONS. THE TOWN HAS AN AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE 12-24 PINE ST., ADJACENT TO THE VFW WHICH IS ON TOWN OWNED LAND. MR. SPELLIOS & I HAVE MET WITH THE LEADERSHIP OF THE VFW TO DISCUSS THE POSSIBILITY OF CONSTRUCTING 30-40 UNITS OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING FOR VETERANS WHICH WILL INCLUDE A NEW VFW POST AND A SPACE TO OFFER SERVICES ON SITE. MR. SPELLIOS ADDED THAT Mr. Grishman has been consistent on two topics: affordable housing and veterans services. We spend \$55,000 ANNUALLY OUT OF A \$79.0M BUDGET ON VETERANS. THE PROBLEM IS EVERYWHERE. THE MACHON IS TREMENDOUSLY SUCCESSFUL AND GAVE US A ROAD MAP ON HOW TO CREATE AFFORDABLE HOUSING. THE HOPE HERE IS TO RECREATE THE SUCCESS OF THE MACHON AND TAKE A PARCEL THAT WAS ALREADY APPROVED FOR 21 LARGER UNITS, A BLIGHTED COMMERCIAL BUILDING IN A RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD, AND CONTROL THE DEVELOPMENT OF IT. THE BOARD IS ALSO COMMITTED TO PROVIDING THE VFW SPACE AND OFFICE SPACE FOR SERVICES. THERE HAS BEEN AN IMPRESSIVE REEMERGENCE OF THE VFW, THANKS TO THE REPRESENTATIVES HERE NOW. MR. SPELLIOS ANTICIPATES SIGNING THE P&S AT OUR NEXT MEETING AND USING ARPA FUNDS AND AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST (AHT) FUNDS. THE TOWN WILL ISSUE A RFP FOR A NONPROFIT HOUSING PARTNER TO DO THE DEVELOPMENT SIMILAR TO WHAT B'NAI BRITH DID WITH THE MACHON. MR. DUFFY ECHOES YOUR SENTIMENTS; THIS IS REALLY EXCITING FOR THE TOWN AND THE COMMUNITY. PATRICK BURKE, COMMANDER, VFW, STATED THAT THIS IS AN UNBELIEVABLE OPPORTUNITY FOR THE VETERAN COMMUNITY AND THEY ARE LOOKING FORWARD TO THE PROCESS. MR. MALOON SAID IT BEST — THIS IS UNPRECEDENTED AND EXCITING. MR. DUFFY: SOMETHING LIKE THIS IS ALWAYS GREAT TO SHARE WITH THE PUBLIC AND THE BOARD IS READY TO ANSWER YOUR QUESTIONS AND CONCERNS. MR. GRISHMAN THANKED MR. BURKE FOR MEETING WITH THEM, ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THE RELATIONSHIP HAS BEEN CONTENTIOUS AND HE HOPES THEY CONTINUE TO MOVE FORWARD. THE BOARD IS HERE TO HELP. KIM EPSTEIN, AHT CHAIR, IS TASKED WITH HELPING THE TOWN MEET AFFORDABLE HOUSING

GOALS. THIS IS THE EXACT PROJECT WHERE THE COMBINATION OF SPECIALIZED HOUSING, AFFORDABLE HOUSING, AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES WILL BE FINANCED IN A WAY THAT WILL MAKE IT HAPPEN.

4. JOINT MEETING WITH FINANCE COMMITTEE/DISCUSSION OF FY24 BUDGET:

FINANCE COMMITTEE CHAIR, ERIC HARTMANN OPENED THE FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING AT 7:09 PM.

THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR AND THE FINANCIAL TEAM HAVE BEEN PULLING THE FY24 BUDGET TOGETHER SINCE THE FALL. This budget conforms to Select Board financial policy. There will be no cannabis impact fees, \$90,000 REDUCTION, AND CUTS COSTS TO ENSURE ADEQUATE RESOURCES FOR MAINTAINING SERVICES. IT INCLUDES UTILITY EXPENSES, PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS AND FUNDING FOR ALL COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS. MR. LUDDY & Ms. Sarro showed a presentation: this is a \$79M budget, broken out into several categories with THE LARGEST BEING EDUCATION. THE TOWN BENEFITS FROM AN EXCELLENT FINANCIAL RESERVE POSITION, HAVING REACHED THE HIGHEST LEVEL THE TOWN HAS EVER HAD (EXCESS LEVY CAPACITY ISN'T A RESERVE BUT IS AN UNTAXED AUTHORIZATION). WE CAN ONLY TAX 2.5% OVER LAST YEAR. THIS SHOWS WE'RE TRYING TO BE CAREFUL. QUESTIONS FROM THE BOARD: IS FREE CASH & STABILIZATION AVAILABLE FOR OPERATING BUDGET? NO AS IT IS NOT A RECURRING REVENUE SOURCE BUT IS A PRODUCT OF REVENUES IN EXCESS OF ESTIMATES AND UNDER EXPENSES WHICH DWINDLES AS REVENUE STREAMS GET TIGHT. WHERE ARE WE IN RELATION TO POLICY? Ms. SARRO WILL DISCUSS IN A LATER SLIDE. MR. SPELLIOS: STATE AID IS PROVIDED THROUGH THE GOVERNOR'S BUDGET PROCESS AND LEGISLATIVE STEPS. OVER THE YEARS WE HAVE SEEN A 3.3% INCREASE IN STATE AID. WHEN THIS BUDGET WAS DEVELOPED, WE USED CONSERVATIVE ESTIMATES. The governor's budget has since been released. There is a 7.14% decrease partially due to the removal of CANNABIS IMPACT FEES. THERE ARE TWO REVENUES THAT WE ANTICIPATE FROM CANNABIS BUSINESSES: 3% LOCAL OPTION TAX, COLLECTED QUARTERLY AND 2) CANNABIS COMMUNITY IMPACT FEES - AGREEMENTS WRITTEN AS PERCENTAGE OF SALES. THERE HAS BEEN CONTENTION & LITIGATION AT THE STATE LEVEL THAT QUESTIONS THAT PRACTICE. THE ABILITY TO COLLECT IS UNCERTAIN SO WE ASSUME 0 % TO BE CONSERVATIVE. LEGISLATION PASSED IN 2022 THAT THE TOWN HAS TO PROVE AN IMPACT AND CAN'T ASSESS A FLAT FEE WITH THE CANNABIS COMPANY. AT THE ADVICE OF THE MMA AND OTHER COMMUNITIES, WE'RE ASSUMING 0%. MS. SARRO DISCUSSED THE FY2024 BUDGET PROCESS: DEPT HEADS HAD TO COME UP WITH 2 SCENARIOS: LEVEL FUNDED AND 10% REDUCTION, A WORST-CASE SCENARIO IN CASE OF AN UPCOMING RECESSION. THE FINANCE TEAM AND DEPT. HEADS THEN MET TO DISCUSS BUDGETS. THERE WERE SOME REDUCTIONS BUT THE BUDGET FOLLOWS THE 2% + \$425,000 of New Growth Policy. Ms. Fletcher asked about the change from a SENIOR PLANNER TO ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (IT WAS RECOMMENDED THAT WE MAKE THE POSITION MORE ATTRACTIVE AS A NUMBER OF COMMUNITIES ARE LOOKING FOR A SENIOR PLANNER. THERE ARE A # OF CANDIDATES AND WE SHOULD BE FILLING THAT POSITION SHORTLY). THERE WAS A BRIEF DISCUSSION ABOUT FACILITIES AND THE NEW SCHOOL BUILDING PROJECT, WHICH IS OVERSEEN BY FACILITIES DIRECTOR MAX KASPER. PUBLIC SAFETY INCLUDES AN INCREASE DUE TO THEN COLA INCREASES AND THE LYNN DISPATCH CONTRACT (WHICH IS STILL IN NEGOTIATIONS). HUMAN SERVICES INCLUDES AN INCREASE OF 1.42%. PUBLIC & REGIONAL SCHOOLS INCLUDE 2.6% INCREASE IN PUBLIC SCHOOLS AND 5% INCREASE OF VOCATIONAL SCHOOL BUDGET BUT DOES NOT INCLUDE FUNDING TO THE DISTRICT FOR NON-RESIDENT TUITION. THE SCHOOL DEPT. BUDGET WAS IN LINE BUT THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE INCREASED IT. PUBLIC EDUCATION ACCOUNTED FOR 64% OF ALL GENERAL FUND SPENDING WITH THE REMAINING 36% SHARED AMONG THE REST OF GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS. Mr. SPELLIOS: THESE ARE GROSS COSTS NOT NET AND THERE ARE SOME INDIRECT COSTS THAT WE HAVE DEDICATED REIMBURSEMENT FOR THAT HE WOULD LIKE TO SEE. MS. SARRO: STATE AID DOES NOT HAVE A CLEAR REVENUE LINE FOR VOCATIONAL SCHOOL REIMBURSEMENT. THERE WAS A DISCUSSION ABOUT THE SCHOOL BUDGET, INCLUDING SCHEDULE 19 ADJUSTMENTS, CATEGORIES THAT THE TOWN PAYS FOR VS. WHAT THE SCHOOL DEPT. PAYS FOR AND BREAKING SPENDING OUT BETWEEN TOWN AND SCHOOL, CHARTER SCHOOL ASSESSMENTS. MR. LUDDY DISCUSSED THE DEBT SERVICE COST CENTER WHICH GREW SIGNIFICANTLY FOR FY23 FOR CAPITAL NEEDS, SPECIFICALLY DUE TO THE NEW SCHOOL PROJECT. THE School's portion of the debt service is over \$3MM out of \$7MM. Long-term debt is maturing for a 5% REDUCTION IN PRINCIPLE PAYMENTS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS HAVE INCREASED 4% DUE TO THE INCREASE IN PAYROLL TAX AND HEALTH INSURANCE HAS INCREASED BUT WE WON'T KNOW HOW MUCH UNTIL OPEN ENROLLMENT, AND THERE IS AN

INCREASE IN PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS. THIS BUDGET IS GOING TO BE VERY TIGHT AND WE MAY HAVE TO REALLOCATE FUNDS FOR HEALTH CARE COSTS, WHICH ARE PREDICTED TO BE SIGNIFICANT. WE WERE IN A SIMILAR SITUATION LAST YEAR, ONE OF THE ASSESSMENTS CHANGED FAVORABLY, NETTING US MORE MONEY, WHICH WAS APPLIED PROPORTIONATELY TO THE SCHOOLS. THE STATE BUDGET HAS ALREADY BEEN ANALYZED AND SHOWS A NET INCREASE OF \$274,945 OR 5% ON RECEIPTS AND 2.8% ON ASSESSMENTS OVER WHAT WE BUDGETED. THE FINANCE TEAM REDUCED THE BUDGET BY \$500,000 AND FEEL THIS IS A GOOD BUDGET AS IT FUNDS OUR RESPONSIBILITIES. WE HAVE GOOD CONTRACTS IN AN INFLATIONARY ECONOMY ALTHOUGH THEY'RE MORE EXPENSIVE THAN THEY SHOULD BE. DISCUSSED COSTS, MANAGING THEM, AND KEEPING THE TOWN AFFORDABLE AS WELL AS LINE-ITEMS THAT ARE PERPETUALLY UNDERFUNDED. COMPARATIVE ANALYSES WITH PEER COMMUNITIES HAVE BEEN CONDUCTED TO SEE WHERE THE TOWN FITS. THERE HAS BEEN A 22.5% INCREASE IN STATE AID ASSESSMENTS IN THE PAST 3 YEARS. STABILIZATION ACCOUNTS WILL NOT BE INCREASED THIS FISCAL YEAR AS THESE NUMBERS ARE DROPPING DUE TO A STRESSED BUDGET. WE HAVE SOME CHALLENGES - OPERATING COSTS, HEALTH CARE AND RETIREMENT COSTS ARE INCREASING AND WE ARE PAYING A DISPROPORTIONATE SHARE. WE HAVE TO GROW THE TAX BASE. THE TOWN IS INVESTING IN EXPENSIVE CAPITAL PROJECTS AND TWO BUDGETS IN A ROW HAVE INCREASED TAXES. Ms. FLETCHER WOULD LIKE TO SEE CONVERSATIONS WITH THE SCHOOL DEPT. ABOUT SHARING DEPARTMENTS SUCH AS FACILITIES AND HR. MR. LUDDY WILL BE PUTTING FORTH A COMPREHENSIVE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT LIST SOON. Mr. SPELLIOS, REGARDING SCHOOL COMMITTEE COMMENTS: THE SCHOOL COMM. HAS AN IMPORTANT JOB FOR STUDENTS BUT SELECT BOARD'S JOB IS FOR ALL TOWN RESIDENTS IN ADDITION TO STUDENTS. WE SUCCESSFULLY PARTNERED WITH THE SCHOOL COMM TO BE ABLE TO PUT FINANCIAL CONTROLS IN PLACE FOR A \$100M SCHOOL. WE WON'T BE ABLE TO DO THE NEXT PROJECT IF WE CHANGE OUR BEHAVIOR AND RETURN TO OUR PRE-DISCIPLINED WAYS, WE WON'T BE ABLE TO DO ANYTHING. WE HAVE TO FIND A WAY TO DO EVERYTHING AND HAVE TO RETURN TO FINANCIAL DISCIPLINE, INCLUDING THE SUPERINTENDENT. COSTS ARE RISING AND WE NEED TO INVEST IN THE MIDDLE SCHOOL, EVERYONE HAS TO STRIKE THE BALANCE.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY NAOMI DREEBEN, SECONDED BY JOAN HILARIO, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO ADJOURN THE FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING AT 8:42 P.M.: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

5. Note Sale: Town Treasurer/Collector, Patrick Luddy, has been working with Bond Counsel going through the list of projects and had a note sale of \$4.4M to finance projects from 2020, 2021 and 2022 as approved by Town Meeting and to cover a note maturing this year. There were five bids and the winner is fidelity Capital Markets with a 3.51% net cost. The highest bid came in at 4.1%. The Board is being asked to vote on the final approval and sale of the notes. Mr. Luddy also needs signatures from the majority of the Board. He did not ask for a new rating as the fee outweighed the benefit because the Town is at the highest S&P for short-term (1-year) borrowing now. Ms. Fletcher asked about borrowing again for a note from last year that is going to mature. Per Mr. Luddy, he does an analysis affords us a year for additional debt to mature so we don't have to make additional principle payments. Funds will be invested. Ms. Fletcher stated that she is concerned and disappointed that this is 2 years without paying principle, borrowing and paying for projects we haven't started.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY PETER SPELLIOS, SECONDED BY DAVID GRISHMAN, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: THAT THE WRITTEN VOTES PRESENTED IN THIS MEETING IN CONNECTION WITH THE TOWN'S SALE OF ITS NOTES BE ADOPTED AS WRITTEN AND INCORPORATED INTO THE MINUTES OF THIS MEETING IN FULL: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

6. HADLEY/HAWTHORNE REUSE DISCUSSION: MR. DUFFY: AT THE LAST MEETING WE DISCUSSED FUTURE USES OF THE HADLEY AND THE SENSE OF URGENCY IN MOVING THIS PROJECT ALONG AS WELL AS THE NEED TO WORK ON A TRACK WITH THE HAWTHORNE AND HADLEY. HE WOULD LIKE INDIVIDUAL BOARD MEMBERS AND THE BOARD AS A WHOLE TO DISCUSS THEIR THOUGHTS.

- MR. GRISHMAN THE BUDGET CONVERSATION IS EYE-OPENING, WE NEED TO TALK ABOUT HOW TO EXPAND REVENUE WITHOUT TAXING AND CUTTING SERVICES FURTHER. IT'S OBVIOUS THAT ONE OF THESE PROPERTIES HAS TO BE REVENUE GENERATING. BASED ON FEEDBACK FROM THE HADLEY REUSE COMMITTEE, A HOSPITALITY ASPECT WILL BRING ROOM & MEALS TAXES AND BRING PEOPLE TO HUMPHREY STREET. A BOUTIQUE HOTEL WILL BE SUCCESSFUL.
- Ms. Fletcher feels that the Hadley & Hawthorne need to be looked at together and agree that budgets aren't going to get better. We could use a revenue generating project and something community enhancing such as Groton's beautiful small boutique hotel. She also doesn't support full open space at the Hawthorne and feels some of it has to be revenue generating.
- Ms. Phelan is envisioning mixed use commercial, a central location where community exists, a space for commercial tenants and an event space for people to rent, as well as a community space big blue bargains, anchor food pantry create a hub for people who want to utilize community services.
- Mr. Duffy agrees generally with a hospitality use and a boutique hotel. Hospitality is a need but a
 Signature open space area across the street would bring people to the area. Important to know how a
 Mixed use would do in that space.
- MR. SPELLIOS APPRECIATE WHAT EVERYONE'S SAYING AND FEELS THE HAWTHORNE NEEDS TO BE PREDOMINANTLY OPEN SPACE. THE OTHER STUFF WILL CORRUPT THE PURITY OF THE PUBLIC SPACE AND WILL SACRIFICE THE SPACE (1.5 ACRES). He's comfortable doing affordable housing, not comfortable with executing revenue generating space. When it comes to Hadley, Mr. Spellios agrees with Ms. Phelan. If we can't use it in the condition it is in now, we're going to have to use capital which means having to invest in it. Agree with a boutique hotel but it's a very complicated real estate deal and he feels it is in the Town's best interest to do a feasibility and marketing studies for the location to see if there is even a market here. We need consultants to determine if a boutique hotel is advisable. The Town may have to contribute something. Ms. Fletcher asked if we can do a study for what the best use is? Mr. Spellios stated that market rate condos are the best use. I've talked to Sean about hiring Pinnacle to do a market study and would like to give Sean the Board's ok to move ahead with a market study. TA Fitzgerald likes the idea of a community and civic center.
- THE BOARD GAVE UNANIMOUS CONSENT TO HAVE TA FITZGERALD REACH OUT TO PINNACLE ADVISORY GROUP.

C. VOTES OF THE BOARD

1. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA: MR. DUFFY IS REMOVING THE ONE DAY LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST FROM BENT WATER, ITEM #3. THE APPLICATION IS CORRECT BUT THE AGENDA HAS AN INCORRECT DATE. GARGI COOPER IS ORGANIZING AN EVENT AT THE HIGH SCHOOL — THERE WILL BE A LOT OF GREAT ITEMS UP FOR AUCTION, BEER & WINE, AND APPETIZERS FOR \$35. THERE WAS A BRIEF DISCUSSION ABOUT SERVING ALCOHOL IN A SCHOOL (THE SUPERINTENDENT APPROVED THIS EVENT). OTHERS HAVE APPROACHED TA FITZGERALD ABOUT HAVING A CONCERT AT THE HS WITH ALCOHOL.

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY PETER SPELLIOS, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FITZGERALD, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO APPROVE A ONE DAY LIQUOR LICENSE FOR BENT WATER BREWING CO.: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

D. CONSENT AGENDA

THE CONSENT AGENDA IS DESIGNED TO EXPEDITE THE HANDLING OF ROUTINE AND THE MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS OF THE BOARD. THE SELECT BOARD MAY ADOPT THE ENTIRE CONSENT AGENDA WITH ONE MOTION. AT THE REQUEST OF ANY BOARD MEMBER, ANY ITEM(S) MAY BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND PLACED ON THE REGULAR AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

- 1. VOTE TO APPROVE APPLICATION FOR HAWKING & PEDDLING AND DOOR TO DOOR SOLICITATION FOR EMPLOYEE, COREY SAPIENZA, OF SUNRUN (SOLAR PANELS) LOCATED AT 240A CHERRY STREET, SHREWSBURY, MA 01545
- **2.** VOTE TO APPROVE CHANGE OF MANAGER APPLICATION FOR BERTUCCI'S RESTAURANTS, LLC, (APPLICANT: GARRETT CARMEN) LOCATED AT 450 PARADISE RD.
- **3.** VOTE TO APPROVE ONE-DAY LIQUOR LICENSE FOR GARGI COOPER FOR EVENT AT SWAMPSCOTT HIGH SCHOOL, 200 ESSEX ST., FRIDAY, MARCH 31, 2023, 4:00 PM 10:00 PM SEE MOTION ABOVE.
- **4.** Vote to approve minutes of the regular meeting of 2/15/23

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY MARY ELLEN FLETCHER, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED** TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1, 2 & 4: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

E. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

- **i.** THANKED FINANCE TEAM AND DEPARTMENT HEADS FOR THEIR WORK ON THE BUDGET. THEY ALL WORKED HARD PUTTING THEIRS TOGETHER. I FEEL WE HAVE A SOLID BUDGET.
- ii. Town Clerk is busy with census, dog licenses.
- FIREWORKS EVENT. WE'RE ON A TWO-YEAR SCHEDULE WITH TODISCO COUNTRY CLUB. MR. SPELLIOS WOULD LIKE TO GIVE TA FITZGERALD PERMISSION TO WRITE A VERY STRONGLY WORDED LETTER EXPRESSING THE BOARD'S DISSATISFACTION. HE WILL LOOK INTO IT. MS. FLETCHER WILL GIVE THEM THE BENEFIT OF THE DOUBT AND REQUEST THAT TA FITZGERALD HAVE A DIRECT CONVERSATION WITH THEM.
- **iv.** Thanked the board for approving the hiring of Cheryl Moschella and recognized Dick Simmons for his assistance over the last 6 months. I would like to have him back before the Board to talk about his perspective and possible changes.
- **v.** LIBRARY DIRECTOR JONATHAN NICHOLS HOSTED THE VETERANS' GROUP AND IS WORKING WITH SURE CAPTURING RESIDENTS' UNIQUE HISTORIES.
- vi. MIKE SWEENEY HAS BEEN INVITED TO DO STORY TIME AT THE LIBRARY TOO.
- **vii.** Asked police and fire to work with Swampscott Housing for additional handicapped parking spaces around their campuses.
- **viii.** Thanked everyone who participated in the SURE event celebrating Black History Month Monday night. Those who are pulling these events together are doing a wonderful service for everyone.

F. SELECT BOARD TIME

MR. DUFFY: READ DEBORAH NEWMAN'S COMMENT THAT WAS EMAILED TO HIM EARLIER TODAY RE: THE WELL-ATTENDED DISCUSSION ON COYOTES.

Ms. Fletcher: 1) SWAC is amazing. I'll get highlights from the meeting. 2) the coyote issue is something I'm concerned about. I would like a real plan from the Police Chief and animal control officer. TA Fitzgerald: If residents have concerns, they should reach out to the ACO. I don't expect that we are going to be euthanizing coyotes. Ms. Fletcher: what are we doing proactively? People on the presentation were trying to understand what they should do should they be approached? TA Fitzgerald will reach out to the ACO and recognized the work of the Swampscott Conservancy in educating residents. Mr. Spellios: residents shouldn't have to call the police. We have to be proactive. 3) Thanked SURE for their work Monday night at the Black History Month event. The High School choir is very impressive.; 4) The Board had a heated conversation last meeting. The Police Chief said he would like to have a meeting which she would like to facilitate if everyone else is open to it. Mr. Duffy responded that he & Mr. Grishman have plans to meet with the Chief. We want to have these conversations but there is a big challenge in having it publicly. Mr. Spellios also stated that the Board won't be able to speak freely due to laws. He also contends that the chain of command is with the Town

ADMINISTRATOR. MR. DUFFY AGREES THAT THIS IS A SLIPPERY SLOPE AS IT IS A PERSONNEL/TOWN MANAGEMENT ISSUE. DEPARTMENT HEADS REPORT TO THE TA WHO REPORTS TO THE BOARD. THIS IS NOT SPECIFIC TO THE POLICE DEPT. BUT IT OPENS UP A DOOR THAT WILL LEAD TO DYSFUNCTION. TA FITZGERALD FEELS THE DYSFUNCTION HAS TO DO WITH THE SIGNIFICANT CHANGE POLICE AND FIRE HAVE HAD TO DEAL WITH. IF EVERYTHING BECOMES POLITICAL, IT HANDICAPS THE TOWN ADMINISTRATION. MS. FLETCHER DISAGREES THAT THE ISSUE IS ABOUT CHANGE AND FEELS WE HAVE ISSUES DUE TO LACK OF COMMUNICATION. SHE IS LOOKING FORWARD TO THEM HAVING A CONVERSATION.

Mr. Grishman: Nothing to ADD.

Ms. Phelan: 1) Acknowledged the hard work of the PTOs in anticipation of becoming one school, especially in making sure that the experience at each elementary school is similar. 2) There is a Someone Special dance this week at the High School for elementary school children.

MR. SPELLIOS: 1) THANKED MS. PHELAN AND THE PTOS FOR HOLDING A SOMEONE SPECIAL DANCE; 2) THANKED CHARLIE PATSIOS FOR BEING IN OUR EAR AND ADVOCATING FOR SOMETHING THAT HAS SIMILARITY TO WHAT WE ARE DOING (BUILDING AFFORDABLE HOUSING).

UPON **MOTION**, DULY MADE BY DAVID GRISHMAN, SECONDED BY KATIE PHELAN, IT WAS UNANIMOUSLY **VOTED**: TO ADJOURN AT 9:45 P.M.: ALL IN FAVOR: YES. ANY OPPOSED: NO. MOTION CARRIES.

TRUE ATTEST,

Dianni Marchese

DIANNE MARCHESE, ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT TO THE TOWN ADMINISTRATOR & SELECT BOARD

MINUTES APPROVED BY THE SELECT BOARD ON XXXX

MINUTES APPROVED BY THE FINANCE COMMITTEE ON 06/22/2023.

ATTACHMENTS:

DEB NEWMAN'S EMAIL TO MR. DUFFY
TRANSFER OF LICENSE
BUDGET PRESENTATION
NOTES DOCUMENTATION
ONE DAY LIQUOR LICENSES
HAWKING & PEDDLING APPLICATION
TA REPORT